# San Diego Gas & Electric Company's Progress Report on Implementation of Phase 2 De-Energization Guidelines

August 4, 2020



# Table of Contents

I.	Introduction		1
II.	Working Groups and Advisory Boards2		
	A.	Working Groups	2
	B.	Advisory Boards	2
III.	De-l	Energization Exercises	3
IV.	Who Should Receive Notice, When Should Notice Occur, and How Should Notice Occur?4		
	A.	Communications Plan	4
	В.	Website and Technology	7
	C.	Notifications Regarding Potential or Active De-Energization Events	8
	D.	Meter and Circuit IDs	9
V.	Con	nmunity Resource Centers	9
VI.	Restoration of Power Service Upon Conclusion of Public Safety Need for De-Energization 9		9
VII.	Trar	nsportation, Communications, and Water System Resilience1	.0
VIII.	Med	dical Baseline and Access and Functional Needs Populations1	.0
IX.	Trar	nsparency1	.1
Χ.	Defi	nitions1	.2

Appendix A: Community Resource Center Plan

Appendix B: Electric Vehicle Plan

### I. Introduction

Pursuant to Ordering Paragraph (OP) 4 of California Public Utilities Commission (Commission or CPUC) Decision (D.) 20-05-051, San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E) submits this report detailing its progress towards implementation of the Phase 2 de-energization guidelines set forth in Appendix A of D.20-05-051 (Phase 2 Guidelines). The Phase 2 Guidelines also require the electric utilities to prepare a Community Resource Centers Plan and an Electric Vehicle Plan. These are attached to this report as Appendix A and Appendix B, respectively. A copy of this progress report is being provided to the Director of the Commission's Safety and Enforcement Division (SED), served to the service list of Rulemaking (R.) 18-12-005, and posted to SDG&E's website.

SDG&E has an obligation to operate its system safely. This obligation requires SDG&E to deenergize (*i.e.*, turn off) power lines when necessary to protect public safety (Public Safety Power Shutoff or PSPS). SDG&E is statutorily authorized to do so under California Public Utilities Code (P.U. Code) §§ 399.2(a) and 451, consistent with D.12-04-024, Commission Resolution ESRB-8, D.19-05-042, and D.20-05-051.

SDG&E has been utilizing PSPS since 2013 as a measure of last resort to prevent catastrophic wildfires and reduce wildfire risk. Over the past year, California has increased its level of focus on mitigating the impact of PSPS events. SDG&E manages and mitigates the impacts of PSPS events through collaboration with key stakeholders and by implementing voluntary and CPUC-mandated mitigation measures, including extensive notification efforts. In an effort to continually improve, SDG&E is developing additional activities with the goal of reducing or eliminating to the extent feasible the impact of PSPS events.

SDG&E appreciates this opportunity to highlight its progress towards complying with the new and additional PSPS requirements established by the Commission in D.20-05-051. This report maps to and follows the sequencing of the Phase Guidelines for ease of reference.

\_

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> D.20-05-051 at OP 4 provides that the electric utilities "must submit two progress reports detailing progress towards implementation of the guidelines set forth in Appendix A." The first progress report is due two months after issuance of D.20-05-051, which is August 5, 2020. The second progress report is due six months after issuance of D.20-05-051, which is December 7, 2020 (consistent with Commission Rule 1.15 – Computation of Time).

### II. Working Groups and Advisory Boards

This section describes SDG&E's overarching efforts related to working groups and advisory boards.

### A. Working Groups

SDG&E has partnered with the County of San Diego's Office of Emergency Services (County OES) to create the Public Safety Power Shutoff Working Group, which will be a sub-committee to the County's existing Access and Functional Needs (AFN) working group. The PSPS Working Group will focus on sharing lessons learned between impacted communities and SDG&E to help refine SDG&E's de-energization protocols. This will include Community Resource Centers, communication strategies, information sharing, identification of critical facilities, strategies for supporting people and communities with access and functional needs, and contingency plans. In particular, SDG&E will seek recommendations from the PSPS Working Group on the best ways to conduct outreach to impacted communities in order to improve coordination for future de-energization events.

Consistent with the Phase 2 Guidelines, SDG&E has invited the small and multijurisdictional electric utilities, community choice aggregators, communications and water service providers, CPUC staff, tribal and local government entities, and representatives of people/communities with access and functional needs and vulnerable communities to participate in the PSPS Working Group. The first PSPS Working Group meeting is planned for August 26, 2020.

### **B.** Advisory Boards

The SDG&E Wildfire Safety Community Advisory Council (WSCAC) is currently comprised of a specialized group of ten diverse and independent community leaders from public safety, tribal government, business, nonprofit, and academic organizations in the San Diego region. WSCAC members were identified and selected by SDG&E leadership due to their extensive leadership experience in public safety, emergency management, wildfire management, community-based services, community engagement, and academic/applied technology. WSCAC meetings are chaired by the Chief Safety Officer of SDG&E, and SDG&E plans to hold them on a quarterly basis. The WSCAC has thus far met twice in 2020 and has two more meetings scheduled.

Consistent with D.20-05-051, SDG&E is in the process of modifying its WSCAC to comply with the Phase 2 Guidelines for advisory board membership as well as meeting cadence. SDG&E has identified several candidates to add representatives of regional water agency leadership and communications sector leadership to the WSCAC. SDG&E plans to focus future meetings around best practices for regional coordination, community preparedness, de-energization issues and safety, and the optimal use of existing and emerging technologies.

In addition to the PSPS Working Group and WSCAC, SDG&E along with the other investor owned utilities (IOUs),<sup>2</sup> established a voluntary Statewide AFN Advisory Council comprised of a diverse group of recognized Community Based Organization (CBO) leaders supporting the AFN population, members and advocates from within the AFN community as well as leaders from various State Agencies. The objective of the Statewide AFN Advisory Council is to help the IOUs learn and understand the unique needs of its most vulnerable customers and stakeholders. The IOUs plan to incorporate best practices to improve its support of the AFN population now and in the future. Specifically, the Council will: 1) actively identify issues, opportunities, and challenges; 2) serve as a sounding board and offer insights; 3) share experiences, perspectives, and best practices; 4) identify opportunities for partnerships; 5) help identify the needs of the various AFN constituents, and 6) amplify the message amongst the constituency they represent.

To date, the Statewide AFN Council has held three meetings, with the most recent meeting held on July 24, 2020. Some examples of feedback received by the Council include:

- Provide more tools and training for utility field personnel to engage with people with disabilities if encountered in the field
- Educate call center representatives to direct customers to 2-1-1 for the identification of community specific resources during and after an emergency or PSPS event
- Provide food replacement following a PSPS event
- Consider providing fuel for generators during a PSPS event
- Engage with CA Association of Health Plans and Department of Managed Care to encourage patient assistance obtaining backup power for medical needs

The next Statewide AFN Council meeting is scheduled for August 14.

# III. De-Energization Exercises

SDG&E utilizes the Incident Command System (ICS) – Utility Compatible for all emergency response practices in an All Hazards environment. Documentation is written with ICS frameworks and personnel are trained in each of the ICS roles. Exercises are conducted following the Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program (HSEEP). After-Action Reports (AARs) and Improvement Plans (IPs) allow SDG&E to continually strengthen the overall system on an annual cycle.

SDG&E's 2020 Training and Exercise plan follows a stepped approach. Between each step, lessons learned are applied to the following step towards building an effective virtual EOC plan, an effective communications system, and a confident and competent response team. All

The IOUs are SDG&E, Southern California Edison Company (SCE), and Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E).

exercises are being designed for a complex virtual response to a multiple incident scenario with coordination between the EOC and all other operations.

The Phase 2 Guidelines requires the IOUs to coordinate with public safety partners and representatives of people/communities with access and functional needs to plan deenergization simulation exercises throughout the utility service territories in the areas with the highest historical and forecasted risk for de-energization in advance of fire season. SDG&E's tabletop exercise with external partners is scheduled for September 22, 2020. SDG&E is conducting three internal exercises leading up to the final exercise that includes the external public safety partners, which will be conducted in a virtual environment to simulate the COVID-19 conditions.

As outlined in D.20-05-051, the September de-energization exercise will not disrupt electrical service, but will replicate a worst-case PSPS simulation, whereby SDG&E can measure program performance and test notification systems and protocols to critical facilities, as well as the functionality of a virtual EOC environment. Following the tabletop exercise, SDG&E will report lessons learned to the exercise participants as well as to the PSPS Working Group, WSCAC, and Statewide AFN Council.

# IV. Who Should Receive Notice, When Should Notice Occur, and How Should Notice Occur?

### A. Communications Plan

Communications and outreach efforts associated with SDG&E's de-energizations are a key component of its PSPS Public Education campaign. The campaign includes strategies and tactics that will help further empower and educate customers to become more resilient and able to overcome the challenges associated with PSPS events. The campaign strategies being deployed include direct and in-direct customer engagement and customer education through marketing and informational materials that are focused on preparedness, resource availability, PSPS event notifications, and real-time situation updates.

### Before a Public Safety Power Shutoff

SDG&E's PSPS public education and communications campaign includes direct communications with customers through robust PSPS education. Targeted and in-language marketing materials have been, and continue to be, developed and distributed across the service territory to inform the general public and customers (residential and commercial) of important measures to prepare themselves for potential PSPS events. The primary calls-to-action for the campaign inform the public and customers to update contact information and sign up for PSPS update notifications and preparedness measures.

A cornerstone objective of SDG&E's wildfire safety public education and communication campaign is to inform the public and customers how to prepare for and build resiliency through a PSPS event. These efforts include the development of resource materials utilized for community outreach events, partner CBO community engagement with their constituents, communications with broadcast media and briefings with key stakeholders. The Company continues to inform the public of the expanded electric infrastructure hardening efforts to help the affected public remain resilient during wildfire-related events. In parallel, SDG&E is focused on an augmented understanding of customer and public pain points during weather-related events, illuminating gaps in SDG&E offerings and communications and identifying opportunities for improvement. Additional emphasis has been placed on in-language communications and engaging with hard-to-reach populations.

SDG&E is implementing its annual community education program. This effort utilizes a suite of marketing tactics that started in the Spring and will continue through the end of fire season. This campaign also supports and promotes the Company's outreach efforts such as open houses and community fairs. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, these outreach events have been reimagined due to social distancing and public safety concerns. The Company created alternatives such as webinars and drive-through events. To date, SDG&E has seen tremendous success at its two drive-through safety fairs, which were held in communities located in the high fire threat district (Ramona and Julian) on July 11 and 18, 2020. Three more community events are planned through September.

The PSPS community public education campaign includes targeted AFN outreach efforts. SDG&E works with local CBOs, non-profits and service providers, such as 2-1-1 and the regional AFN Relay Network through County OES, to leverage pre-existing communication protocols to provide AFN outreach and communications within the service territory. In turn, these organizations amplify PSPS and wildfire safety messaging and resources to their constituents, including AFN populations and those who speak alternative languages.

The community public education campaign consists of messaging that includes, but not limited to, encouragement to update contact information and sign up for emergency notifications, prepare emergency kits and plans, practical how-to information when managing through an outage, and create defensible space around their properties. Campaign tactics will include platforms such as TV/radio broadcast, newspaper advertising, paid search, digital media, out of home advertising, newsletters bill inserts, informational videos. Campaign messaging will also be translated into the "prevalent" languages spoken in the territory and made available to those in-language audiences.

### During a Public Safety Power Shutoff

During a weather-related event, SDG&E provides real-time situational awareness and one-voice communications including, but not limited to customers, the general public, local broadcast media outlets, public safety partners, local governments, tribal governments, CBOs and critical facilities. Upon identifying the risk and the affected communities, real-time situation updates

are initiated to appropriate stakeholders. SDG&E's NewsCenter and website are updated to provide situational updates for the duration of the event. During an event, all communications drive to the SDG&E NewsCenter and sdge.com for the most updated information. Broadcast media is proactively updated of SDG&E's PSPS related outages and help to communicate situational awareness with the public. The public, including customers, receive updates via broadcast media, notifications from the company's Enterprise Notification System (ENS) if signed up for notifications, social media channels, SDG&E's Customer Contact Center and partner organizations and stakeholders. Stakeholder coordination and message amplification continues through event conclusion.

The Company's collaboration with CBOs are also activated during a PSPS event. For example, 2-1-1 and County OES, which runs the AFN Relay Network, receive advanced notification within an event, as well as updates throughout an event. They also receive the same talking points as SDG&E's Customer Contact Center to ensure messaging consistency and the best available resources for affected communities. CBOs amplify safety messaging and real-time awareness during PSPS events. Some of these organizations also communicate directly with hard to reach AFN populations and have the capabilities to assist with language translations and other services for affected communities. Customers and the general public can also sign up for email, voice and/or text notifications during PSPS and wildfire-related events. These alerts will be made available in the required languages prevalent in the service territory.

Based on customer and community feedback, notifications in 2020 are being simplified, will be clearer to related activity to wildfire mitigation or risk, and are being restructured to show increased empathy. SDG&E will continue to solicit feedback from public safety partners and members of AFN organizations to jointly develop and further refine communication and noticing plans. This will include efforts at the aforementioned PSPS Working Group meetings.

Broadcast and social media channels have become essential communication platforms during PSPS events for the service territory. SDG&E has developed messaging and creative assets specifically for these platforms and leveraging trusted and relied upon forums, such as Nextdoor, to communicate with the public and affected communities. Wildfire and PSPS related Public Service Announcements (PSAs) and social media posts will help further situational awareness. Should any communication channels cease to operate during an event (internet, mobile communications or landline access), then detailed messaging and real-time updates will be amplified across other channels including broadcast media (radio/tv), social media, Customer Contact Center and coordination with community-based organizations.

In the event impacted communities experience instances of no, or limited, internet or cellular coverage, SDG&E plans to deploy changeable, moveable road signs that will provide impacted communities updated PSPS information. These will be located at higher trafficked intersections, identified with the assistance of Caltrans.

After a Public Safety Power Shutoff Event

Following a PSPS event, SDG&E begins to evaluate and refine the Company's response in its entirety, specifically looking for any process gap and opportunities for improvement. SDG&E personnel meet and confer with the various stakeholders, including but not limited to customers, public safety partners, local governments, tribal governments, CBOs and critical facilities impacted by the Company's response. Feedback is solicited of collaborative actions that worked well and those that can be improved. Recommendations are evaluated, adapted and utilized to develop and refine the following year's public education and communication campaigns.

Clearly and succinctly communicating PSPS information with customers is always a top priority of SDG&E. In effort to provide clear comprehension and understanding of messaging, SDG&E employs qualified experts possessing strong aptitude in developing content of notifications, thus minimizing confusion. Furthering the clarity of notifications, SDG&E routinely engages with – and solicits post-event feedback – from various stakeholders, including impacted customers. This refinement is an on-going process that will continue to evolve with external feedback and is a topic that is planned for upcoming quarterly PSPS Working Groups sessions.

### B. Website and Technology

SDG&E's website, SDGE.com, has been hosted on the Amazon Web Services (AWS) "Cloud" infrastructure (through an AWS preferred vendor, Acquia) since 2011. During an active PSPS event, SDG&E utilizes Acquia's 24/7 monitoring tools and staff to check not only up-time, but performance, as well. If a degradation of SDGE.com performance is detected, Acquia will add AWS web servers to increase capacity, and it is experienced and well versed in this type of requirement.

SDG&E has built a highly-scalable website infrastructure, which includes:

- Using CloudFlare as the Content Delivery Network;
- Fine-tuning load balancing and proxy caching;
- Utilizing a multi-tier stack, that separates the web servers from the file/database servers; and
- Implementing an upgraded disaster recovery system (in different parts of the country).

SDG&E also monitors for malicious activity (e.g., Denial of Service attacks) and has a set of tools that can detect this type of activity. If malicious activity is found, SDG&E will block the nefarious IP Addresses from contacting SDG&E's website.

Further, SDG&E has created a backup website on AWS, SDGEInfo.com, which is a two-page website to communicate to customers during a PSPS event if SDGE.com becomes unavailable.

To support customers who are in areas of low bandwidth, SDG&E redesigned its website (SDGE.com) in 2018 and implemented improvements, which provide a website that loads fast and is easy to use. SDG&E accomplished this by preventing unnecessary image downloads and reducing the amount of scripting (e.g., JavaScript and Cascading Style Sheets (CSS)) on each page of SDG&E's website. Specific improvements included:

- Minimalist design removed pages promoting other SDG&E programs that caused longer load times;
- Responsive design website optimized for devices, including mobile, tablet and desktop;
- Static pages pages do not include many background scripts (e.g., Amazon.com which would serve up information based on browsing history);
- Page loading consistently monitor page load times and optimize ways for pages to load, including reducing;
  - o The amount of pre-loaded data on each page (e.g., images, PDFs, etc.)
  - o The number of requests per page (e.g., "handshakes" amongst servers)
- Content Management System (CMS) a CMS, Drupal, writes lean code based, which creates faster loading pages since the browsers do not have to read lots of code;
- Content Delivery Network (CDN): a CDN is a group of servers which work together to provide fast delivery of Internet content. This creates less dependency on customers' internet connection.

Regarding the Phase 2 Guidelines' requirement for the electric utilities to consult with the California Department of Technology (CDT) regarding steps for website and service performance necessary for effective and uninterrupted communication to the general public regarding de-energization events, SDG&E met with the CDT on July 21, 2020 and also provided follow-up information to the CDT after the meeting.

### C. Notifications Regarding Potential or Active De-Energization Events

SDG&E makes every effort to provide accurate notifications prior to potential de-energizations. These notifications are informed by forecasted weather conditions, and are sent to customers on potentially impacted circuits consistent with the CPUC's PSPS notification timing requirements. SDG&E's meteorology department consistently monitors the weather conditions in the service territory and provides a rolling seven-day forecast of the potential for wind events and wildfire conditions, but given the dynamic nature of this information, it is likely to change as weather conditions materialize. The potentially impacted circuits and sectionalizing devices, and the associated impacted customers, is updated as those forecasted weather conditions evolve. In addition to voice, email, and text notifications, customers and the public may view location-specific PSPS information via SDG&E's website and, beginning this year, a new PSPS mobile application. To the extent SDG&E has false positives or false negatives, they will be enumerated in the PSPS post-event reports.

### D. Meter and Circuit IDs

SDG&E supports providing communication carriers with the meter and circuit IDs feeding communication carrier critical facilities to be de-energized. In fact, in 2018 SDG&E spearheaded new communication protocols for communication carriers in order to enhance transparency and aid these customers in PSPS preparedness. Consistent with the Phase 2 Guidelines, SDG&E will continue to provide communication carriers with the meter ID and sectionalizing/circuit ID of their facilities in SDG&E's de-energization and re-energization notifications.

### V. Community Resource Centers

Per the Phase 2 Guidelines, SDG&E has prepared a Community Resource Centers (CRC) Plan, which provides siting and accessibility of CRC locations as well as an overview of resources needed to best serve impacted customers and communities. The CRC is provided in Appendix A hereto.

# VI. Restoration of Power Service Upon Conclusion of Public Safety Need for De-Energization

SDG&E continues to strengthen its ability to quickly and safely restore power after a PSPS event has occurred. Since the 2019 fire season, SDG&E has focused on identifying PSPS event data that will improve its capabilities of tracking and prioritizing restorations to within 24 hours after the "conclusion of conditions that cause a de-energization event."

SDG&E has analyzed technology solutions and identified a software solution to capture this data. The software is currently in the design phase and SDG&E anticipates implementing it prior to the fourth quarter of 2020. Additionally, standardized circuit patrol resource type and general patrol time requirements have been assembled to allow for enhanced estimated time of restoration forecasting. Robust use of these metrics will allow for stronger restoration prioritization and resource allocation during a PSPS event in order to support meeting the CPUC mandated 24-hour restoration limit.

The Phase 2 Guidelines, to the extent possible, require the electric utilities to inform public safety partners and operators of critical facilities and critical infrastructure within one hour of the utility knowing it will re-energize a line. SDG&E has met with internal stakeholders to map out a new process for performing one-hour pre-energizing notifications to community partners and customers. SDG&E is currently working to train responders on their roles in this new process and to deconflict these new customer notifications with its current PSPS event messaging with the intent of ensuring customers have a clear understanding of the phases of re-energization, know where to go to get updates on the restoration activities, and have fair expectations on the timelines for their restoration.

### VII. Transportation, Communications, and Water System Resilience

Since 2019, SDG&E has worked with representatives of communications and water service providers to assess their need for backup generation. SDG&E is currently working with these critical infrastructure customers, including the transportation sector, to capture which sites have either fixed generators, are able to deploy a generator, or do not have access to backup generation during a PSPS. Once SDG&E captures this data, it will be able to coordinate with local, tribal, Federal and State government agencies to consult on backup generation needs.

Per the Phase 2 Guidelines, SDG&E has designed a plan, with input from Electric Vehicle (EV) charging network provides, to reinforce EV charging networks and key charging locations with backup generation. This EV Plan is provided in Appendix B hereto.

In accordance with D.20-05-051, SDG&E has begun preliminary conversations with technology vendors to explore mobile and deployable Level 3 EV fast charging in PSPS impacted areas. Most of the products explored thus far are "off-the-shelf," however, some have customizable options. In addition, SDG&E engaged in several conversations with the IOUs regarding what a typical architecture for this type of charging solution might look like. If the available "off-the-shelf" fast charging solutions do not provide the desired features, SDG&E is prepared to enlist the help of engineering design firms to assist with the scoping and development of a viable and efficient mobile and deployable Level 3 fast charging solution.

Additionally, SDG&E is having internal discussions about the architecture and methodology best suited for the public to obtain the EV charging station status data for those units within the Tier 2 and Tier 3 HFTD areas to display on SDG&E's website and mobile apps. SDG&E currently has 51 EV chargers within the Tier 2 HFTD and 7 within the Tier 3 HFTD and will be working with providers to gather the appropriate status data and display it to EV drivers.

# VIII. Medical Baseline and Access and Functional Needs Populations

One of the most effective and meaningful ways to engage with the AFN community is by leveraging strategic partnerships, by region. SDG&E has established strong partnerships with key community-based organizations that serve AFN customers. SDG&E will utilize these partnerships to identify, meaningfully communicate with and provide support to AFN customers beyond those in the medical baseline population to ensure they are prepared for and aware of PSPS. Additionally, SDG&E has been utilizing these partnerships, working groups, and the Statewide AFN Council to identify assistance needed by these customers.

One example of these partnerships is the creation of an AFN Support Model with 2-1-1 San Diego and 2-1-1 Orange County to help mitigate adverse impacts to those experiencing PSPS events. 2-1-1 San Diego and 2-1-1 Orange County are well-positioned to support vulnerable populations regardless of where they reside, and SDG&E is in discussions with Tribal partners to

extend support to their vulnerable communities. These incremental partnerships will create an expanded offering of services, programs and collateral available to AFN and vulnerable populations. Expanded offerings will include:

- Enhanced identification of AFN customers through partner lists and phone screening;
- Assessment of AFN population needs and aligning them with existing and new regional resource providers;
- Referral of customers to resources such as evacuation planning;
- Additional services such as assisted transportation, back-up power, essential resiliency items, food security, outreach and welfare checks, and temporary shelter;
- Navigation support (e.g., personalized case management and follow-up for impacted individuals with the greatest need);
- Outreach campaign to customers in advance of and during PSPS events through a broad range of communication channels; and
- Proactive community engagement outside of the fire season to ensure AFN individuals have the resources they need ahead of time.

SDG&E is also leveraging community-based organizations to identify assistance needed, including evacuation planning. For example, SDG&E has included PSPS preparation content in San Diego County's "Personal Disaster Plan for People Who May Need Assistance," which provides evacuation planning assistance. In order to enhance distribution, SDG&E will utilize a mailing campaign to send these guides to AFN customers in the High Fire Threat District. SDG&E will train its Customer Service Field Representatives who may encounter AFN customers during PSPS door-knock notifications on the County of San Diego's First Responder AFN Training Series. This is a series of eight videos developed by County OES to provide first responders with helpful information to consider when evacuating individuals with physical, cognitive and emotional disabilities.

In accordance with the Phase 2 Guidelines, on June 1, SDG&E submitted its 2020 Plan to Support Access and Functional Needs Populations During Public Safety Power Shutoffs, which summarizes SDG&E's broader plans to support the AFN population.

Finally, SDG&E is prepared and has a process in place to provide medical baseline and critical facility customer information to local and tribal governments, upon their request, on a confidential basis.

# IX. Transparency

SDG&E provides a dedicated section on its website for wildfire information (https://www.sdge.com/our-commitment-wildfire-safety). Wildfire Safety is the main part of the website's global navigation, and SDG&E is constantly updating and adding to the site. From this main page, SDG&E provides information related to:

- Public Safety Power Shutoffs
- SDG&E's Community Fire Safety Program
- Community Resource Centers
- And additional preparedness and safety information

As part of the website's outreach and education about wildfire, information is available regarding Vegetation Management, the Alert SDG&E Camera Network, SDG&E's weather network, undergrounding, and wood-to-steel pole upgrades.

SDG&E's dedicated PSPS website (https://www.sdge.com/wildfire-safety/public-safety-power-shutoffs) outlines the PSPS shutoff process, notifications, and gives a wealth of background information about PSPS. Additionally, SDG&E publishes a frequently asked questions section and a call to action to sign up for alerts.

The information is easily accessible and as discussed in Section IV.B above, SDG&E takes website best practices into account, including:

- Responsive design SDGE.com is optimized for any size device customers use to access the website;
- Usability studies have ensured the website is easy to use and information is easy to locate;
- Accessible SDG&E utilizes accessibility coding techniques so that customers with disabilities can access the website.

### X. Definitions

SDG&E continues to partner with local governments and Public Safety Partners to identify and include critical infrastructure in notifications, including public safety answering points (9-1-1 emergency services) and transportation critical infrastructure. In June 2020, SDG&E identified NAICS codes associated with the transportation sector and reviewed the corresponding customer lists for reasonableness and for inclusion as an SDG&E transportation PSPS critical infrastructure and facility. SDG&E's final list of transportation accounts based on the NAICS codes has been coded in our customer notification system as PSPS critical. SDG&E Account Executives are engaging with these newly identified transportation customers to ensure that SDG&E has the proper contact information for PSPS notifications and emergencies. Additionally, the Account Executives are initiating discussions with these customers regarding their back up generation capabilities. SDG&E has a marketing campaign for unassigned transportation accounts that will direct these customers to a landing page where emergency notification contacts and back up generation information is being requested. SDG&E is also providing educational information to these newly identified transportation customers regarding PSPS.

# Appendix A Community Resource Center Plan

# Appendix B Electric Vehicle Plan